AGENDA

FINANCE COMMITTEE MONDAY, MARCH 18, 2024, 10:00AM JEFFERSON CITY HALL

- A. Review of Monthly Revenue and Expenses for February
- B. CIP Plan
- C. Council Procedures Manual
- D. 28E Agreements for non-profits
- E. Bell Tower Festival

>
K
MAF
Ξ
SUI
S
5
щ
A
ER/
E
Ö

2/28/2024	%99.99	\$4,748.44 \$250.25 \$17,749.65 \$3,558.00 \$17,150.00 \$17,150.00 \$248.00 \$278.25 \$10.00 \$2461.62 \$135.00 \$377.00 \$24,713.90 \$126,687.11	\$84,628.22 \$2,243.04 \$3,444.71 \$27,221.06 \$13,339.20 \$113.384 \$17,146.85 \$8,790.68 \$29,391.87 \$29,391.87
1/31/2024	58.33%	\$7,292.62 \$539.50 \$11,984.52 \$5,029.95 \$186.27 \$200.00 \$5,029.95 \$0.00 \$1,673.32 \$0.00 \$1,95.50 \$1,95.50 \$0.00 \$1,975.00 \$1,975.00 \$774,512.81	\$74,969,52 \$13,162.26 \$3,524,142 \$25,287.17 \$12,945,44 \$39,437.79 \$3,693.67 \$7,445.04 \$23,682.15
12/31/2023	20.00%	\$40,680.84 \$0.00 \$12.391.33 \$3,722.40 \$8,971.48 \$3,771.48 \$0.00 \$135.00 \$1,	\$59.381.02 \$1,122.81 \$3.387.18 \$25,964.30 \$11,623.54 \$28,058.32 \$8,218.01 \$7,613.38 \$6,606.87
11/30/2023	41.66%	\$67,420.54 \$97.37 \$15,987.79 \$3,059.70 \$25.00 \$7,203.52 \$0.00 \$30,615.98 \$0.00 \$1,652.20 \$1,200.00 \$38,529.46	\$55,471.03 \$1,062.91 \$3,814.99 \$28,162.55 \$13,212.38 \$43,492.98 \$15,338.26 \$15,338.26 \$6,374.92
10/31/2023	33.33%	\$462,965.75 \$3,057.62 \$12,265.62 \$4,398.49 \$664.37 \$100.00 \$5,690.17 \$0.00 \$15,851.34 \$0.00 \$3,427.20 \$750.00 \$5000	\$81,194.88 \$17,730.70 \$3.189.45 \$26,761.40 \$12,958.29 \$25,480.04 \$3.645.25 \$18,558.12 \$7,724.26 \$1,077.80 \$1,077.80
9/30/2023	25.00%	\$92,461.88 \$761.70 \$13,420.06 \$3,672.00 \$22,615.71 \$0.00 \$10.00 \$32,720.50 \$276.50 \$1,809.54 \$1,6036.59	\$55,333.63 \$18,275.33 \$3,654.68 \$27,250.57 \$18,982.32 \$51,432.25 \$11,531.69 \$31,077.85 \$14,596.98 \$18,091.87
8/31/2023	16.66%	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$2,213.80 \$2,213.80 \$6.00 \$611.74 \$10.00 \$21,885.48 \$3,742.95 \$0.00 \$24,903.50 \$24,903.50	\$52,058.29 \$2,014.65 \$3,933.64 \$26,228.81 \$10,990.13 \$25,945.87 \$22,723.12 \$7,803.99 \$883.35
7/31/2023	8.33%	\$10,432.07 \$66.22 \$13,208.50 \$12,331.35 \$0.00 \$5,625.78 \$40.00 \$24,624.32 \$6,764.09 \$5,920.75 \$5,920.75 \$2,331.24 \$2,331.24 \$2,331.24 \$2,331.24 \$2,331.24	\$82,541.45 \$11,520.47 \$3,803.92 \$33,271.71 \$14,259.88 \$39,946.12 \$6,451.63 \$29,964.83 \$9,783.33 \$6,568.42 \$238,111.76
% Rec'd FY 23- 24		63.01% 71.29% 65.64% 77.52% 88.05% 114.44% 77.50% 82.73% 82.73% 82.73% 62.96% 65.96%	57.68% 63.47% 66.45% 61.42% 72.71% 72.46% 58.46% 62.90% 53.82%
Balance %		\$402,639.86 \$1,922.34 \$59,445.01 \$11,014.31 \$5,518.65 -\$1,371.48 \$5,772.06 \$330.00 \$58,288.04 \$330.25 \$7,39.25 \$67,415.20 \$7,341.74 \$51,853.14	\$398.816.96 \$38.631.83 \$14.522.01 \$138.278.43 \$40.695.82 \$712.175.81 \$36.960.92 \$42.029.44 \$36.960.92 \$42.029.44 \$36.960.92
YTD		\$686,002.14 \$4.772.66 \$113,554.99 \$37,985.69 \$40,666.35 \$10,871.48 \$19,873.94 \$70.00 \$279,211.96 \$11,213.87 \$5,920.75 \$88,84.80 \$17,158.26 \$88,146.86	\$543,578.04 \$67,132.17 \$28,762.99 \$220,147.57 \$108,311.18 \$295,143.19 \$71,999.08 \$71,948.51 \$92,677.25
FY 23-24 Budget		\$1,088,642.00 \$6,695.00 \$173,000.00 \$49,000.00 \$46,185.00 \$25,446.00 \$337,500.00 \$37,600.00 \$24,600.00 \$47,600.00 \$7126,000.00 \$24,500.00 \$24,500.00 \$24,500.00 \$24,500.00	\$942,395.00 \$105,764.00 \$43,285.00 \$356,426.00 \$148,971.00 \$407,319.00 \$88,950.00 \$114,384.00 \$172,200.00 \$2,579,994.00
	REVENUES	PROPERTY TAXES AG LAND TAXES CASINO POLICE FIRE (Includes Township) ANIMAL CONTROL LIBRARY PARK RECREATION SWIMMING POOL SWIM TEAM GOLF COURSE CEMETERY HOTEL MOTEL	EXPENSES POLICE FIRE ANIMAL CONTROL LIBRARY PARK RECREATION SWIMMING POOL GOLF COURSE CEMETERY HOTEL MOTEL

TOTAL STATE OF THE SECOND													· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		FY 23-24 Budget	YTD	Balance	% Rec'd FY 23- 24	7/31/2023	8/31/2023	9/30/2023	10/31/2023	11/30/2023	12/31/2023	1/31/2024	2/28/2024
REVENUES						8.33%	16.66%	25.00%	33.33%	41.66%	20.00%	58.33%	%99.99
WATER	From T-report	\$1,419,402.00	\$837,992.91	\$581,409.09	59.04%	\$122,503.39	\$114.798.25	\$116.351.19	\$112,470,48	\$96,505,51	\$95 184 93	\$97 892 40	\$82 286 76
SEWER		\$1,285,377.00	\$1,398,065.19	-\$112,688.19	_	\$434,884.41	\$103,501.67	\$127,808,03	\$132,486.17	\$120,804.44	\$234 454 78	\$124 489 95	\$119 635 74
SANITATION		\$577,415.00	\$489,117.06	\$88,297.94		\$50,393.71	\$52,192.00	\$48,425.84	\$126,354.52	\$54,217,07	\$50,530,99	\$56,192.78	\$50,810.15
RECYCLING		\$223,000.00	\$147,985.61	\$75,014.39		\$25,914.09	\$14,238.22	\$25,966.39	\$14,380.74	\$14,892.48	\$25,016.26	\$14,805.18	\$12,772.25
AIRPORT	From T-report	\$124,450.00	\$80,977.26	\$43,472.74	%20.29	\$7,169.51	\$5,522.03	\$11,168.01	\$8,528.78	\$16,692.14	\$15,908.84	\$4,009.03	\$11,978.92
TOTAL REVENUES	NUES	\$3,629,644.00	\$2,954,138.03	\$675,505.97	81.39%	\$640,865.11	\$290,252.17	\$329,719.46	\$394,220.69	\$303,111.64	\$421,095.80	\$297,389.34	\$277,483.82
EXPENSES													
WATER	From T-report	\$1,393,344.00	\$588,152.84	\$805,191.16		\$60,439.96	\$63,473.40	\$70,964.60	\$73,302.30	\$142,330.05	\$64,165.60	\$47,064.48	\$66,412,45
SEWER	From T-report	\$1,288,861.00	\$518,961.42	\$769,899.58		\$61,408.34	\$67,538.37	\$89,845.62	\$53,145.92	\$55,721.75	\$61,783.86	\$33,008.89	\$96,508.67
SANITATION		\$635,764.00	\$356,390.80	\$279,373.20	26.06%	\$69,580.44	\$40,112.97	\$41,781.36	\$38,976.76	\$43,096.10	\$44,320.90	\$38,950.53	\$39.571.74
RECYCLING	From T-report	\$223,000.00	\$98,246.74	\$124,753.26		\$17,409.99	\$9,411.79	\$10,451.01	\$12,481.22	\$13,262.36	\$11,334.75	\$11,680.92	\$12.214.70
AIRPORT	From T-report	\$115,700.00	\$38,612.93	\$77,087.07		\$1,330.32	\$1,232.10	\$1,075.11	\$12,481.22	\$18,210.64	\$1,606.03	\$1,644.21	\$1,033.30
TOTAL EXPENSES	SES	\$3,656,669.00	\$1,600,364.73	\$2,056,304.27	43.77%	\$210,169.05	\$181,768.63	\$214,117.70	\$190,387.42	\$272,620.90	\$183,211.14	\$132,349.03	\$215,740.86

ROAD USE TAX FY 23-24 REVENUES From T-report \$62 EXPENSES From T-report \$61 REVENUES-EXPENSES \$1	FY 23-24 Budget \$629,428.00 \$616,903.00	OTY.	Balance ,	% Rec'd FY 23- 24	7/31/2023	8/31/2023	9/30/2023	10/31/2023	11/30/2023	12/31/2023	1/31/2024	2/28/2024
From T-report From T-report -EXPENSES	129,428.00											
From T-report From T-report -EXPENSES	129,428.00				8.33%	16.66%	25.00%	33.33%	41.66%	%00.09	58.33%	%99.99
From T-report \$	16,903.00	\$402,430.52	\$226,997.48	63.94%	\$46,999.33	\$46,502.17	\$66,678.06	\$46,951.62	\$49,233.97	\$54,040.11	\$48,957.59	\$43,067.67
		\$416,071.06	\$200,831.94	67.45%	\$70,028.98	\$36,450.84	\$40,849.06	\$43,470.59	\$39,499.92	\$96,050.23	\$36,433.06	\$53,288.38
のは、これでは、一切の一般の一切の一方では、一切の一切の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の一方の	\$12,525.00	-\$13,640.54			-\$23,029.65	\$10,051.33	\$25,829.00	\$3,481.03	\$9,734.05	-\$42,010.12	\$12,524.53	-\$10,220.71
C CC >=	7 22 24 Budget	Ę		% Rec'd FY 23-	124/2002	COOCIACIO						
	t4 budget	2 -	Dalalice	24	113112023	8/31/2023	9/30/2023	10/31/2023	11/30/2023	12/31/2023	1/31/2024	2/28/2024
REVENUES T-report \$56.	\$563,000.00	\$412,941.74	\$150,058.26	73.35%	8.33% \$42,153.90	1 6.66% \$54,495.14	25.00% \$58,781.12	33.33% \$46,033.01	41.66% \$57,404.05	50.00% \$50,190.64	58.33% \$47,340.03	66.66% \$56,543.85
EXPENSES T-report \$81:	\$813,000.00	\$597,899.80	\$215,100.20	73.54%	\$128,252.99	\$174,508.07	\$22,434.75	\$63,182.24	\$50,079.90	\$116,339.88	\$22,612.75	\$20,489.22
REVENUES-EXPENSES -\$25	-\$250,000.00	-\$184,958.06			-\$86,099.09	-\$120,012.93	\$36,346.37	-\$17,149.23	\$7,324.15	-\$66,149.24	\$24,727.28	\$36,054.63
LOST FUND BREAKDOWN FY 23-24	FY 23-24 Budget	YTD	, Balance	% Rec'd FY 23- 24	7/31/2023	8/31/2023	9/30/2023	10/31/2023	11/30/2023	12/31/2023	1/31/2024	2/28/2024
OHO: THEOREM					8.33%	16.66%	25.00%	33.33%	41.66%	20.00%	58.33%	%99.99
ENSES I Use (Streets)	\$405,000.00	\$471,775.33	-\$66,775.33	116.49%	\$127,252.95	\$162,935.42	\$17,684.06	\$26,388.32	\$23,631.22	\$79,392.36	\$18,092.50	\$16,398.50
Fire	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0.00%	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
	70,000.00	\$24,852.66	\$45,147.34	35.50%	\$1,000.04	\$56.70	\$4.750.69	\$3.033.40	\$3.795.53	\$9.345.13	\$880.25	\$1,990.92
	\$79,000.00	\$75,266.44	\$3,733.56	95.27%	\$0.00	\$11,515.95	\$0.00	\$33,760.52	\$22,653.15	\$3,696.82	\$3,640.00	\$0.00
	\$0.00	\$2,099.80	-\$2,099.80	0.00%	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2,099.80
Pool \$229	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00	\$229,000.00	0.00% 0.00%	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Total Expenses \$81	\$813,000.00	\$573,994.23	\$239,005.77	0.00%	\$128,252.99	\$174,508.07	\$22,434.75	\$63,182.24	\$50,079.90	\$92,434.31	\$22,612.75	\$20,489.22

City of Jefferson City Council Meeting Policy and Procedures and Code of Ethics

Adopted: ______, 2024, by Resolution # _____.

Table of Contents

I.	General Provisions	4
	A. Scope	4
	B. Rules of Order	4
	C. Matters Not Covered	4
	D. Interpretation	4
II.	Time and Place of Meetings	4
	A. Regular Meetings	4
	B. Special Meetings	4
	C. Closed Meetings	5
III.	Agenda	5
	A. Preparation of Agenda	5
	B. Posting and Notification	5
	C. "Tentative" Agendas	6
	D. Emergency Matters	6
	E. Consent Agenda	6
	F. Public Hearings	6
IV.	Conduct of Meetings	6
	A. Call to Order – Presiding Officer	6
	B. Roll Call	6
	C. Quorum Call	7
	D. Control of Discussion	7
	E. Order of Consideration of Agenda	7 7 7
	F. Call for the Question	
	G. Discussion	7
	H. Limit on Remarks	7
	I. Presiding Officer's Right to Enter into Discussion	7
	J. Presiding Officer's Right to Close Debate	7
	K. Votes Necessary for Passage	7
	L. Mayoral Voting Rights	8
	M. Mayoral Veto Power	8
	N. Use of Electronic Devices During Meetings	8
	O. Addressing the City Council after Motion Made	8
	P. Adjournment	8
V.	Citizen Participation	8
	A. Citizen's Right to Address City Council	8
	B. Manner of Addressing City Council	9
	C. Time Limit on Citizen's Remarks	9
	D. Remarks of Citizens to be Germane	9
	E. Decorum	9

VI.	City Council Action	9
	A. City Council Consideration of business	9
	B. Motion Required	10
	C. Motion to Reconsider	10
	D. No Motions by Presiding Officer	10
	E. Call for Vote	10
	F. Separate Consideration	10
	G. City Council Votes Necessary to Pass Assessments	10
	H. City Council Votes Necessary to Suspend Rules and Waive Third Reading	10
	of an Ordinance	
	I. Abstentions Not Due to a Conflict of Interest	10
VII.	Other Provisions	11
	A. Interaction with Litigants	11
	B. Electronic Meetings and Attendance	11
VIII.	Standing Committees of the City Council	
IX.	Amendment of Procedural Rules	11
	A. Amendments to Procedural Rules	11
X.	Code of Ethics	11
	Preamble	11
	A. Act in the Public Interest	11
	B. Comply with the Law	11
	C. Conduct of Members	12
	D. Respect for Process	12
	E. Conduct of Public Meetings	12
	F. Conflict of Interest	12
	G. Gifts and Favors	12
	H. Confidential Information	13
	I. Use of Public Resources	13
	J. Representation of Private Interests	13
	K. Advocacy	13
	L. Policy Role of Members	13
	M. Independence of Boards and Commissions	13
	N. Positive Work Place Environment	13
	O. Implementation	14
	P. Compliance and Enforcement	14
	Code of Ethics Statement of Understanding	16

I. General Provisions

A. Scope

This policy and procedures shall govern the conduct of the City Council and shall be interpreted to insure fair and open deliberations and decision making.

B. Rules of Order

The generally accepted rules of procedure found in Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern City Council meetings unless otherwise requested by the Mayor or a City Council member for a specific reason.

A basic version of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern City Council meetings.

C. Matters Not Covered

Any matter of order or procedure not covered by these rules shall be decided by the presiding officer, with the assistance and advice of the City Attorney.

D. Interpretation

These rules are intended to supplement and shall be interpreted to conform with the Statutes of the State of Iowa and the Ordinances of the City of Jefferson. Should any provision be inconsistent with Iowa law, that provision shall be struck with the applicable Iowa law replacing it.

II. Time and Place of Meetings

A. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the City Council are held on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday's of each month at 5:30 P.M. in the City Council Chambers at 2220 N. Chestnut Street, Jefferson, Iowa. Work Sessions may be scheduled throughout the year as determined necessary by City Council. The date and starting time of work session may be scheduled by motion of the City Council. If such a day falls on a legal holiday, the meeting is held the next business day at the same time unless a different day or time is determined by the City Council.

B. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called 24 hours in advance in accordance with Iowa law upon call of the Mayor or upon the written request of a majority of the members of the City Council submitted to the City Clerk. The call for a special meeting shall specify the place, day, hour and agenda for the meeting and shall be posted at City Hall and given personally, left at the usual place of residence, or delivered via e-mail to each member of the City Council.

A special meeting may be requested by a citizen. The fees to cover costs associated with the meeting include, but not limited to, publication cost, attorney and engineer fees, City Council member fees and clerk cost. The fees will be set by the City Administrator and City Clerk at the time of the request.

C. Closed Meetings

A closed session may be held only by an affirmative vote of either two-thirds (2/3) of the entire City Council or all of the members present at the meeting. The City Council may hold a closed session in accordance with Code of Iowa Section 21.5, only to the extent a closed session is necessary and for one of the following lawful reasons:

- 1. Records deemed confidential by State or Federal law (Open Records Law Code of Iowa Chapter 22),
- 2. Application for letters of patent,
- 3. Present or imminent litigation discussion with legal counsel,
- 4. Licensing examination or investigation,
- 5. Law Enforcement matters involving investigations, inspection, auditing, selection, prosecution or settlement of cases,
- 6. Evaluation of professional competency of an individual for appointment, hiring, performance or firing, when the individual requests a closed session,
- 7. Real estate matters where premature disclosure could increase the cost to the City.

The vote of each member on the question of holding the closed session and the reason for holding the closed session shall be announced publicly at the open session and entered into the minutes. Final action on any matter will be taken in open session. The closed session will be recorded with detailed minutes noting persons in attendance and the general subject discussed. The minutes and recording shall be sealed and not be public record unless an order of the court is made or for a minimum of one year from the date of the meeting.

In order to participate in closed sessions, the Mayor and City Council members must be physically present in the Council Chambers. Participation in closed sessions shall not be allowed via electronic means.

III. Agenda

A. Preparation of the Agenda

Prior to each regular City Council meeting, the City Clerk shall publish an Agenda which contains all items the City Council anticipates acting upon at the meeting. Matters may be placed on the agenda by the Mayor, City Administrator, City Clerk, a City Council Committee, or any two (2) City Council members, in consultation with the Mayor and City Administrator. The City Council may adopt the agenda as presented or may amend the agenda as provided by these rules and then adopt the agenda as amended.

The deadline for agenda item submittal shall be no later than Thursday at 12:00 P.M., prior to the Tuesday meeting. City Council packets will be dispersed Friday prior to the Tuesday meeting. After the packets have been dispersed, no items will be deleted or added unless approved by the Mayor and City Administrator. If an item is not ready for action at the time of the meeting, that item will be postponed.

B. Posting and Notification

State law requires cities to develop and post a tentative agenda for each City Council meeting (including work sessions or informal meetings) at least 24 hours prior to the

meeting. This applies regardless of where the meeting is held. "Notice" includes advising those media which have requested such notice, posting notifications in prominent and public locations, posting to the City web site, and taking other reasonable measures to inform citizens in advance about each meeting. The City Clerk is usually responsible for complying with these requirements.

C. "Tentative" Agendas

The prepared agenda should be considered "tentative" in case a new subject comes up before the 24 hour deadline. If an item considered is time sensitive and cannot be postponed until the next regular meeting, the item can be added to the agenda by the Mayor.

D. Emergency Matters

Issues that arise less than 24 hours prior to the meeting are best postponed unless a strong case can be made for their emergency inclusion. The City Attorney should be consulted as quickly as possible if a true emergency occurs and an item needs to be added to the agenda. The City Clerk should also make an attempt to notify the designated media about this emergency item.

E. Consent Agenda

The Agenda shall separately designate items on a "Consent Agenda" which may be acted upon by the City Council as a single vote. The "Consent Agenda" shall consist of routine, non-controversial items which, may be appropriately considered in total at the City Council meeting. If any City Council member requests to remove an item from this portion of the agenda, the rest of the consent items will be acted on as a whole with the removed item(s) being voted on separately under business.

F. Public Hearings

All public hearings shall be scheduled for 5:30 P.M. on the day of the meeting at which the hearing is scheduled. Unless it is required by statute or necessary to conform to proceedings required for a special purpose, a hearing shall commence when declared open by the presiding officer and shall be closed by the presiding officer or by other formal action of the City Council.

IV. Conduct of Meetings

A. Call to Order - Presiding Officer

The Mayor, or in the Mayor's absence or incapacity, the Mayor Pro Tem, shall be the presiding officer at all City Council meetings. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem shall call the meeting to order at the appointed hour. If both the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are absent the City Clerk shall call the meeting to order and a temporary presiding officer shall then be selected by the City Council members present.

B. Roll Call

Before proceeding with the business of the City Council, the City Clerk shall call the roll of the members and the names of those present shall be entered in the minutes. The late arrival of any absentee City Council members shall also be entered in the minutes.

C. Quorum Call

During the course of the meeting, should the Mayor note a City Council quorum is lacking, the Mayor shall call this fact to the attention of the City Clerk. The City Clerk shall issue a quorum call. If a quorum has not been restored within a reasonable time limit of a quorum call, the meeting shall be deemed automatically adjourned.

D. Control of Discussion

The presiding officer shall facilitate discussion of the City Council on Agenda items to promote equitable participation in accordance with these rules.

E. Order of Consideration of Agenda

Except as otherwise provided in these rules, each Agenda Item shall be considered in the order shown on the Agenda. Each Agenda item shall be separately announced by the presiding officer, or City Clerk, for purposes of discussion and consideration. This rule shall not apply to consideration of items listed on the Consent Agenda. If the Mayor or other member of the City Council asks to "suspend the rules" for purposes of reordering the Agenda, the City Council shall take a vote to modify the placement of the Agenda item(s) for good cause.

The Mayor may modify the placement of the Agenda item(s) for good cause.

F. Call for the Question

The "Call for the Question" is a motion calling for the City Council to vote on whether or not to vote on the original motion. This motion must be seconded and debate is not allowed. If the motion for the question passes, then a vote must be held on the original motion. Passage of the motion calling for the question occurs when two-thirds (2/3) of the City Council present votes "aye."

G. Discussion

A City Council member shall speak after being recognized by the presiding officer. A City Council member, after being recognized, shall not be interrupted, except by the presiding officer, in the event it is necessary to enforce these rules.

H. Limit on Remarks

Each City Council member shall limit his/her remarks to a reasonable length. A City Council member recognized for a specific purpose shall limit remarks to that purpose.

I. Presiding Officer's Right to Enter into Discussion

The Mayor, or other presiding officer as a member of the City Council, may enter into any discussion.

J. Presiding Officer's Right to Close Debate

The presiding officer has the right to close debate and speak last on any item, unless two-thirds (2/3) of the City Council members present vote to continue the discussion.

K. Votes Necessary for Passage

Three (3) City Council members constitute a majority of the City Council, and therefore, Three (3) affirmative votes are sufficient for passage of any policy matter an ordinance or resolution, barring statutory requirement for a supermajority. Motions may be passed with the majority of a quorum voting in the affirmative. Procedural issues are determined as per Robert's Rules of Order. Any exceptions to these rules are specifically noted in this document.

L. Mayoral Voting Rights

The Mayor is not a member of the City Council and may not vote as a member of the City Council. The Mayor Pro Tem retains all of the powers of a City Council member.

M. Mayoral Veto Power

The Mayor may sign, veto, or take no action on an ordinance, amendment, or resolution passed by the City Council. The Mayor may not veto a motion passed by the City Council. The Mayor Pro Tem may not veto a measure if he was entitled to vote on the measure at the time of the passage. The Mayor may exercise his/her veto power within fourteen (14) days of the passage and he/she must explain the reason for such veto to the City Council members at the time of the veto. The City Council members may override the Mayor's veto by a two-thirds (2/3) majority or four (4) of the City Council members within thirty (30) days of the veto.

N. Use of Electronic Devices During Meetings

It is important to remember that communicating with another City Council member or member of the audience or public with an electronic device (i.e.; texting during a meeting) may be a violation of Iowa's open meetings law. As such, any information communicated during such an exchange may be subject to open records laws.

O. Addressing the City Council after Motion Made

When a motion is pending before the City Council, no person other than a City Council member shall address the City Council.

P. Adjournment

- a. No City Council meeting shall continue past 9:30 p.m. unless a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the City Council votes to extend the meeting to discuss specified items; and any motion to extend the meeting beyond 9:30 p.m. shall include a list of specified agenda items to be covered and shall specify in which order these items shall be handled.
- b. Any agenda items not completed at a regularly scheduled City Council meeting shall be continued to the next regular business meeting, or by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the City Council to an adjourned regular meeting.

V. Citizen Participation

A. Citizen's Right to Address City Council

Persons other than the Mayor or a City Council member shall be permitted to address the City Council during the "Public Forum" on matters not on the agenda, or public hearing portions of the Agenda or at other times as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.

<u>Persons wishing to address the Council during Public Forum or during Public Hearings</u> shall list their names on a sign-up sheet prior to the beginning of the meeting.

B. Manner of Addressing City Council

A person desiring to address the City Council shall step to the podium state his/her name, address, and group affiliation (if any) and speak clearly into the microphone and direct comments to the Mayor and City Council.

C. Time Limit on Citizen's Remarks

An individual citizen shall be limited to three (3) minutes speaking on any subject covered under Rule A, unless additional time is granted by the presiding officer or a majority of those City Council members present. Total citizen input on any subject under City Council consideration may be limited to a fixed period by the presiding officer.

D. Remarks of Citizens to be Germane

Citizen comments must be directed to the subject under consideration. The presiding officer shall rule on the germaneness of citizen comments. Citizens making personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks shall be barred by the presiding officer from further comment before the City Council during that meeting.

E. Decorum

- 1. No person shall disrupt the orderly conduct of the City Council meeting. Prohibited disruptive behavior includes, but is not limited to, shouting, making disruptive noises, such as boos or hisses, creating or participating in a physical disturbance, speaking out of turn or in violation of applicable rules, preventing or attempting to prevent others who have the floor from speaking, preventing others from observing the meeting, entering into or remaining in an area of the meeting room that is not open to the public, or approaching the City Council table without consent. Any message to or contact with any member of the City Council while the City Council is in session shall be through the City Clerk.
- 2. While the City Council is in session, the members must preserve order and decorum. Any of the following shall be sufficient cause for the Mayor to remove any person from the City Council chambers or meeting hall for the duration of the meeting:
 - i. Unreasonably loud or disruptive language, noise, or conduct which obstructs the work of conducting of the business of the City Council.
 - ii. Willful injury of furnishings or of the interior of the City Council chambers or meeting hall.
 - iii. Refusal to obey an order of the presiding officer or an order approved by a majority of the City Council present.

- 3. Before removal of disruptive person / persons from the meeting hall, those person / persons shall be given warning to cease his/her conduct.
- 4. If a meeting is disrupted by members of the audience, the presiding officer or a majority of the City Council present may order that the City Council chambers or other meeting hall be cleared.

VI. City Council Action

A. City Council Consideration of Business

The business of the City Council shall be taken up for consideration and disposition, in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 21: Open Meeting Laws.

B. Motion Required

All actions requiring a vote shall be moved and seconded by a member of the City Council.

C. Motion to Reconsider

A Motion to reconsider a prior vote shall be made by a City Council member who was on the prevailing side in the original action. The motion to reconsider may be made at the same meeting of the original action or at either of the next two (2) regularly scheduled meetings of the City Council immediately successive to the original action.

D. No Motions by Presiding Officer

The Presiding Officer shall not make a motion, but may vote if the presiding officer is not the Mayor at the time of the vote.

E. Call for Vote

At any time in the debate, the presiding officer may call for a vote. Alternatively, two-thirds (2/3) of those City Council members present may call for a vote at any time (See Part IV, Rule F).

F. Separate Consideration

Except as otherwise required by these rules, each Agenda item shall be voted upon separately. Each motion shall require a second and each vote shall be recorded by the City Clerk. The Mayor or any member of the City Council may request that a roll call vote be taken on a specific issue. The presiding officer will then direct the City Clerk to call for each City Council member present to cast his/her vote individually. All votes shall be taken via roll call votes with the City Clerk calling the roll in a random manner.

G. City Council Votes Necessary to Pass Assessments

Assessments require a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the City Council or four (4) City Council members unless a remonstrance is filed in which case all five (5) City Council members must vote to approve the assessment. A remonstrance occurs when 75% of the assessments within the special assessment district file a petition against the project.

H. <u>City Council Votes Necessary to Suspend Rules and Waive Third Readings of an</u> Ordinance

A three-fourths (3/4) vote, or four (4) City Council members, is necessary to suspend the Rules and waive the third reading of an ordinance. The City Council may waive the second and third readings of an ordinance if public notice was published in this manner. In order to waive the second and third readings, there must be a three-fourths (3/4) vote, or four (4) City Council members voting in the affirmative.

I. Abstentions Not Due to a Conflict of Interest

Any Member of the City Council who has not declared a conflict of interest but casts a pass vote or abstains from voting shall have that vote registered as a no vote.

VII. Other Provisions

A. Interaction with Litigants

The Mayor and City Council will not discuss City matters involved in pending/active lawsuits with litigant(s) or litigant's representatives unless the City Attorney is present to provide legal guidance.

B. Electronic Meetings and Attendance

City Council member participation in scheduled City Council meetings by means of telephone, video and other electronic communication shall be permitted provided there are at least two-thirds (2/3) of the entire City Council physically present at the meeting.

The Mayor and Council Members may participate in open sessions of the City Council by means of telephone, video or other means of electronic communication.

VIII. Standing Committees of the City Council

It is standard practice that pertinent issues shall be addressed by the appropriate standing committee prior to being placed on the agenda for consideration by the City Council.

The following are identified as standing committees of the City Council, with membership of each committee being determined annually by the Mayor during the first City Council meeting of the year:

Airport	<u>GCDC</u>	Park & Rec
Animal Shelter	Golf Course	<u>Police</u>
Bell Tower Foundation	Grow Greene County	Planning & Zoning
Cemetery	Gaming Corporation	Street, Water, Sewer,
Jefferson Matters	Highway 30	Sanitation
Downtown Buildings	Housing	Recycling
Finance	LEC Entity	Wage & Benefits
Fire	Library	

Ad-hoc committees with a defined purpose and/or time frame may be appointed by the Mayor to address special issues as needed.

IX. Amendment of Procedural Rules

A. Amendments to Procedural Rules

These rules may be amended through a resolution adopting such a change by a majority vote of the entire City Council.

X. Code of Ethics

Preamble

The citizens and businesses of Jefferson are entitled to have fair, ethical and accountable local government, which has earned the public's full confidence for integrity. To ensure the effective functioning of democratic government and foster public confidence in the integrity of local government and its effective and fair operation requires:

Public officials, both elected and appointed (collectively "Public Officials"), comply with both the letter and spirit of the laws and policies affecting the operations of government; public officials be independent, impartial and fair in their judgment and actions; public office be used for the public good, not for personal gain; and the public deliberations and processes be conducted openly, unless legally confidential, in an atmosphere of respect and civility.

A. Act in the Public Interest

Recognizing that stewardship of the public interest must be their primary concern, Public Officials will work for the common good of the people of Jefferson and not for any private or personal interest, and they will assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and transactions coming before the Jefferson City Council.

B. Comply with the Law

Public Officials shall comply with the laws of the nation, the State of Iowa and the City of Jefferson in the performance of their public duties. These laws include, but are not limited to, the United States and Iowa constitutions, laws pertaining to conflicts of interest, election campaigns, financial disclosures, employer responsibilities, and open processes of government and City ordinances and policies.

C. Conduct of Members

The professional and personal conduct of Public Officials must be above reproach and avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Public Officials shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the character or motives of other members of the City Council, boards and commissions, the staff or public.

D. Respect for Process

Public Officials shall perform their duties in accordance with the policy and procedures and rules of order established by City Council governing the deliberation of public policy issues, meaningful involvement of the public and implementation of policy decisions of the City Council by City staff.

E. Conduct of Public Meetings

Public Officials shall prepare themselves for public issues, listen courteously and attentively to all public discussions before the body, and focus on the business at hand. They shall refrain from interrupting other speakers, making personal comments not germane to the business of the body or otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct of meetings.

F. Conflict of Interest

To assure their independence and impartiality on behalf of the common good, Public Officials shall not use their official positions to influence government decision in which they have a material financial interest or where they have an organizational responsibility or personal relationship, which may give the appearance of a conflict of interest.

In accordance with the law, no member shall participate in the disposition of any matter in which he/she is interested. For purposes of this section "interested" includes any direct or indirect financial or personal interest held by a member or member of his/her family. Before any matter is heard, a member having an interest shall state it and withdraw from participation, or he/she may disclose the facts involved and request a determination by the City Council of whether a conflict of interest exists. Any question of the existence or non-existence of a conflict of interest sufficient to disqualify a Public Official from participating in the disposition of any matter shall be decided by a majority vote of the other members of the City Council. In case of a tie, the member shall be disqualified.

Upon declaration of a conflict of interest, the City Council member shall be excused from the dais. He/she shall have the right to address the City Council from the floor.

Abstentions due to conflicts of interest shall not count as votes for the purpose of determining whether there has been an affirmative vote of a majority of the City Council present, but shall be counted for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present. The vote of member(s) who abstain due to conflict of interest shall be registered as an abstention.

G. Gifts and Favors

Public Officials shall not take any special advantage of services or opportunities for personal gain that are not available to the public in general. They shall refrain from accepting any gifts, favors, or promises of future benefits, which might compromise their independence of judgment or action or give the appearance of being compromised.

H. Confidential Information

Public Officials shall respect the confidentiality of information concerning the property, personnel, or affairs of the City. They shall neither disclose confidential information without proper legal authorization, nor use such information to advance their personal, financial, or other private interest.

I. Use of Public Resources

Public Officials shall not use public resources that are not available to the public in general, such as City staff time, equipment, supplies, or facilities, for private gain or personal purposes.

J. Representation of Private Interests

In keeping with their role as stewards of the public interest, Public Officials shall not appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before the City Council or any board, commission or proceeding of the City.

K. Advocacy

Public Officials shall represent the official policies or positions of the City Council to the best of their ability when designated as delegates for this purpose. When presenting their individual opinions and positions, Public Officials shall explicitly state they do not represent their body or the City of Jefferson, nor will they allow the inference that they do.

L. Policy Role of Members

Public Officials shall respect and adhere to the mayor-council structure of Jefferson's city government as outlined by the Code of Iowa and City of Jefferson Code of Ordinances. In this structure, the City Council determines the policies of the City with the advice, information, and analysis provided by the public, boards and commissions and City staff. The City Council does not take an active role in day to day operations or administration of the city.

The City Administrator shall be directly responsible to the City Council for the administration of municipal affairs as directed by that body. All departmental activity requiring the attention of the City Council shall be brought before the body by the City Administrator and all City Council involvement in administration initiated by the City Council must be coordinated through the City Administrator.

M. Independence of Boards and Commissions

Because of the value of the independent advice of boards and commissions to the public decision-making process, members of City Council shall refrain from using their position to unduly influence the deliberations or outcomes of board and commission proceedings.

N. Positive Work Place Environment

Public Officials shall support the maintenance of a positive and constructive work place environment for City employees and for citizens and businesses dealing with the City. Public Officials shall recognize their special role in dealings with City employees to in no way create the perception of inappropriate direction to staff.

O. Implementation

As an expression of the standards of conduct for Public Officials, the City of Jefferson Code of Ethics is intended to be self-enforcing. It therefore becomes most effective when Public Officials are thoroughly familiar with it and embrace its provisions.

For this reason, ethical standards shall be included in the regular orientations for candidates for the Mayor and City Council and newly elected and appointed officials. Public Officials entering office shall sign a statement affirming they read and understood the City of Jefferson Code of Ethics. In addition, the Code of Ethics shall be annually reviewed by the City Council and the City Council shall update it as necessary.

P. Compliance and Enforcement

The City of Jefferson Code of Ethics expresses standards of ethical conduct expected for the City Council and the Mayor. Public Officials have the primary responsibility to assure that ethical standards are understood and met, and that the public can continue to have full confidence in the integrity of government.

Public Officials that intentionally and repeatedly do not follow proper ethical standards may be reprimanded or formally censured by the City Council. It is the responsibility of the City Council to initiate action if a City Council member's behavior may warrant censure. City Council members shall submit written notification to the offending City Council member detailing infractions of the Code of Ethics or Code of Conduct.

If the offenses continue, then the matter should be referred to the Mayor in private. It is the responsibility of the Mayor, or Mayor Pro-Tem, to initiate action if a member of the City Council's behavior or the Mayor's behavior, may warrant censure. If no action is taken by the Mayor, or Mayor Pro-Tem, the alleged violation(s) can be brought to the full City Council in a public meeting. If the Mayor is the individual whose actions are being challenged, then the matter should be referred to the Mayor Pro-Tem and City Administrator for investigation.

If violation is outside of the Code of Ethics or Code of Conduct, the alleged violation should be referred to the Mayor. The Mayor shall ask the City Administrator and/or the Chief of Police to investigate the allegation and report the findings to the Mayor. It is the Mayor's responsibility to take the next appropriate action. These actions can include, but are not limited to, discussing and counseling the individual on the violations or recommending censure to the full City Council to consider in a public meeting. If the Mayor is the individual whose actions are being challenged, the Mayor Pro-Tem shall ask the City Administrator and/or the Chief of Police to investigate the allegation and report the findings to the Mayor Pro-Tem. It is the Mayor Pro-Tem's responsibility to take the next appropriate action. These actions can include, but are not limited to, discussing and counseling the Mayor on the violations or recommending censure to the full City Council to consider in a public meeting.

A violation of this Code of Ethics shall not be considered a basis for challenging the validity of a City Council decision.

Code of Ethics Statement of Understanding

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Code of Ethics. I
confirm that I have read and understand the Code of Ethics and as a condition of fulfilling my
term serving as a member of the Jefferson City Council or Mayor, I agree that I shall comply
with the standards of conduct established in the Code of Ethics.

City Council Member or Mayor Signature:	
Date:	

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONTINUING PARTICIPATION IN AND SUPPORT OF THE BELL TOWER COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

WHEREAS, the Bell Tower Community Foundation is a 501(c)(3) organization; and

WHEREAS, Bell Tower Community Foundation coordinates the operation and maintenance of the Mahanay Bell Tower located in the central square of Jefferson, Iowa; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Jefferson recognizes the importance of the Mahanay Bell Tower as a community landmark and supports the continuation of the vital services provided by the Bell Tower Community Foundation within the context of the preservation and promotion of the Mahanay Bell Tower.

NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the City Council of the City of Jefferson, Iowa, as follows:

- Section 1. The City of Jefferson agrees to continue to support both financially and philosophically the work of the Bell Tower Community Foundation.
- Section 2. The City of Jefferson commits to appoint a city official to represent the City on the Bell Tower Community Foundation Board of Directors.
- Section 3. The source of funds to support the Bell Tower Community Foundation will be the general fund.
- Section 4. The Mayor, City Administrator, and City Clerk are authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this resolution.
- Section 5. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed, and this resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Passed and approved on	, 2024.	
Attest:	Craig J. Berry, Mayor	
Roxanne M. Gorsuch, City Clerk		

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONTINUING SUPPORT OF ELDER SERVE, LTD.

WHEREAS, Elder Serve, Ltd., is a nonprofit organization in Jefferson, Iowa; and

WHEREAS, Elder Serve, Ltd. Funds and administers the Congregate Meals and Meals on Wheels programs which seek to provide nutritious and affordable meals to senior citizens in Greene County; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Jefferson recognizes the importance of providing quality meals and food security for seniors residing in Jefferson and the surrounding communities and supports the continuation of the vital services provided by the Elder Serve, Ltd.

NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the City Council of the City of Jefferson, Iowa, as follows:

- Section 1. The City of Jefferson agrees to continue to support both financially and philosophically the work of Elder Serve, Ltd.
 - Section 2. The source of funds to support the Elder Serve, Ltd. will be the general fund.
- Section 3. The Mayor, City Administrator, and City Clerk are authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this resolution.
- Section 4. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed, and this resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Passed and approved on	, 2024.	
Attest:	Craig J. Berry, Mayor	
Roxanne M. Gorsuch, City Clerk		

DESCH LITION NO	
RESOLUTION NO.	

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONTINUING SUPPORT OF THE GREENE COUNTY EARLY LEARNING CENTER

WHEREAS, the Greene County Early Learning Center, doing business as The Children's Center, is a nonprofit organization providing childcare services in Jefferson, Iowa; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Early Learning Center accepts funding and directs the operations of its childcare facility; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Jefferson is aware of the statewide childcare shortage and recognizes the need for robust childcare providers in the community and supports the continuation of the vital services provided by the Greene County Early Learning Center.

NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the City Council of the City of Jefferson, Iowa, as follows:

- Section 1. The City of Jefferson agrees to continue to support both financially and philosophically the work of the Greene County Early Learning Center.
- Section 2. The source of funds to support the Greene County Early Learning Center will be the general fund.
- Section 3. The Mayor, City Administrator, and City Clerk are authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this resolution.
- Section 4. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed, and this resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Passed and approved on	, 2024.	
Attest:	Craig J. Berry, Mayor	
Roxanne M. Gorsuch, City Clerk		

28E AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL SUPPORT AND CITY HALL USE

This Agreement for Financial Support and City Hall Use (the "Agreement") is dated as of, ______, 2024 is between the **City of Jefferson** ("City") and **Greene County Development Corp.** ("GCDC"), and is entered into pursuant to Chapter 28E of the Code of Iowa.

Through cooperative efforts of GCDC and the City, new residential and business development has occurred within Jefferson, Iowa, creating new economic opportunities for the community. To continue this trend, the City Council of Jefferson has agreed to offer financial support to GCDC in addition to permitting GCDC's use of a portion of the City's Municipal Building located at 220 North Chestnut Street, Jefferson, IA (the "Facility"), to GCDC for its operations, all within the provisions of this Agreement.

The parties therefore agree as follows:

- 1. Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide funding to GCDC and outline terms of the use of the Facility.
- 2. Facility Use. The City shall permit GCDC's use of designated office space, approximately ___ square feet, in the Facility (the "Premises") for the duration of this Agreement. GCDC will be responsible for the expense of its phone services. Other than the Premises, entries to the Premises, and restrooms and other public amenities, the City will retain the sole use of the remaining space within the Facility. GCDC shall insure all of the contents of the Premises, and further shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all damage, theft or loss of GCDC property located or stored at the Premises. City employees shall not be responsible for cleaning or maintaining the Premises.
- 3. No New Entity or Joint Property. This Agreement does not create a separate legal entity to provide for the services described in this Agreement, and it is also contemplated that no property will be acquired jointly by the parties for the matter covered by this Agreement. It is agreed the Facility and Premises shall remain the property of the City and that all other property hereafter acquired by any of the parties which may be used in connection with the services covered by this Agreement shall be the separate property of the party acquiring such property and shall remain so upon the termination of this Agreement.
- 4. Duration. This Agreement shall be in effect from the date it is signed by both parties until January 1, 2025, and shall automatically renew for one-year terms thereafter unless terminated as provided herein.
- 5. Financial. While this Agreement is in force, City may provide to GCDC an annual contribution (the "Annual Contribution"). The Annual Contribution shall be in an amount determined by the City's Council at one of its council meetings.

- 6. Obligations of Jefferson. The City agrees to:
 - a. Own the Facility and operate it as a municipal building;
 - b. Arrange for the staffing of the Facility with paid workers and/or volunteers;
 - c. Budget and appropriate funds to cover the cost of operating the Facility;

7. Obligations of GCDC. GCDC agrees to:

- a. Cooperate with staff at the Facility with respect to the cleaning, maintenance, repair, and operation of the Facility, and specifically the Premises.
- b. Utilize funds appropriated from the City only in furtherance of community development by GCDC.
- 8. Administrator. The City Administrator of the City of Jefferson shall serve as administrator for the purpose of administering the cooperative undertaking provided for under this Agreement, as contemplated by Iowa Code Section 28E.6(1)(a).

9. Termination.

- a. Prior to December 31, 2024, either Party may terminate this Agreement during the initial term by giving written notice of such termination to the other party.
- b. Following the initial term, either Party may terminate this Agreement by giving 60 days written notice of such termination.
- c. Following the effective date of termination by either party pursuant to Section 9(a) or Section 9(b), the City will no longer be obligated to deliver its Annual Contribution to GCDC or offer the use of the Premises to GCDC.
- d. This Agreement may additionally be terminated by a written agreement signed by both the parties, the terms of which shall be stipulated in the termination agreement.
- 10. Governing Law. The validity, construction and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. Venue for any dispute shall be in the courts located in Greene County, Iowa.

- 11. Severability. The invalidity of any one or more phrases, clauses, sentences, sections, paragraphs or provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the remaining portions hereof.
- 12. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by a written agreement signed by all the parties.
- 13. Nonexclusive Agreement. GCDC acknowledges and understands that Jefferson may enter into separate 28E agreements with other entities related to the use of the Facility. Those separate agreements shall not impact or disrupt the rights and obligations of Jefferson and GCDC under this Agreement.
- 14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter covered by this Agreement. If any clauses or provisions herein contained would invalidate this Agreement in whole or in part, such clauses or provisions only shall be invalid, and the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.
- 15. Miscellaneous. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement by facsimile or by e-mail transmission of a PDF or similar copy shall be equally as effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this Agreement.

The parties are signing this Agreement as of the date stated in the introductory clause.

GREENE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT CORP.	CITY OF JEFFERSON
By:	By:Craig J. Berry, Mayor
	Attest: Roxanne Gorsuch, Clerk